
 
AMENDED – MARCH 27, 2014 
AMENDED – MARCH 31, 2014 

 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014  
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PRESENTATION:   Cindy Bach - Solid Waste Coordinator for Miami County 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 Move to Executive Session to consider the purchase or sale of property for public purposes 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2014 and the March 18, 2014 Regular Piqua City 
Commission Meetings and minutes from the March 13, 2014 Piqua City Commission Worksession  

 
OLD  BUSINESS 

 
2. ORD. NO. 2-14 (3rd Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Section 77.01-Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule IV of the Piqua Code, 
relating to four-way stop intersections pertaining to the Park Avenue/Lambert Drive intersection 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. RES. NO. R-47-14 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to John Deere Company for the purchase of lawn mowers 
for the Public Works Department-Streets and Parks 

 
4. RES. NO. R-48-14 

A Resolution approving the purchase of Parcel No. N44-000560 
 

5. RES. NO. R-49-14 
A Resolution approving the purchase of Parcel No. N44-017270 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, February 4, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. 

       
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
      Consent Agenda 
      
      Approval of Minutes 
 
      Approval of the minutes from the January 21, 2014 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
  
      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent 
      Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
      unanimously.   
         
     NEW BUSINESS 
 
     RES. NO. R-10-14 
     A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the  
    City of Troy, Ohio, City of Tipp City, Ohio, and Miami County Board of Commissioners for the 
    Purpose of funding a Hazardous Coordinator position 
 
     City Manager Huff provided a brief overview stating this Memorandum of Understanding has 
     been in effect since 2009, supports the position of Haz Mat Coordinator.   This a part time  
     position funded by Piqua, Troy, Tipp City, and Miami County and benefits both the city and 
     county residents. 
 
     Several question were raised concerning the cost and if it was equally shared.  Law Director Stacy 
     Wall stated the costs are prorated depending on the size of the entity, and that she reviewed the  
     contract. 
 
     Public Comment 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Res. No. R-10-14. 
 
     Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-10-14  
     be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
     unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution R-10-14 adopted. 
 
    RES. NO. R- 11-14 
    A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of Transformers for the Power System 
 
    Power System Director Ed Krieger provided a brief overview of the request to purchase the twenty- 
    two transformers.  Five bids were received and Ermco, and Power Line Supply were the lowest 
    bids. We would like to purchase twenty-two transformers from Ermco for a not to exceed price of  
    $113,559.  In addition, a Purchase Order will be issued to Power Line Supply for ten Howard 
    transformers totaling $12,500, stated Mr. Krieger.  
 
    Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-11-14. 
 



 2

    Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-11-14 be 
    adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, Terry, Martin and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
    unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-11-14 adopted. 

 
RES. NO. R-12-14 
A Resolution awarding a contract for purchase of a Bucket Truck for the Power System 
 
Power System Director Ed Krieger stated the Power System plans to replace a vehicle this year, 
and went out to bid through the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program.  The Power 
System currently owns several Altec Bucket Trucks  and two Altec digger-derricks and are 
completely satisfied with their performance. Included in the 2014 budget is $175,000 for the 
replacement and would like to purchase this Altec Bucket Truck for a not to exceed price of 
$150,000 which is below budget, stated Mr. Krieger. 
 
Commissioner Terry inquired about the delivery date.  Mr. Krieger explained why it took so long to 
receive the truck after the order is placed. 
 

     Public comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-12-14. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-12-14 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-12-14 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-13-14 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Workers, Inc., (AFSCME), Ohio Council 8, 
Local 984 (Blue Collar) 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall stated this contract is the last of the Union Contract to be ratified. Ms. Wall 
explained the significant changes that would take place in the new contract.  They include: Updating 
the reclassification positions, there will be a need for additional positions added with the new Water 
Plant; discipline updates; allowance of comp time in lieu of overtime, and rewarding employee’s for 
maintaining perfect attendance. 
 

    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
    No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-13-14. 
 

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-13-14 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-13-14 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-14-14 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the 
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Workers, Inc., (AFSCME), Ohio Council 8,    
Local 984 (Clerical) 

 
     Law Director Wall stated this addresses the same benefits contract, wages, health, and discipline  
     as the Blue Collar Contract. The Health Department currently has a Secretary position in the Union,  
     but when the secretary retires the position will no longer be in the union. stated Ms. Wall. 
 
     A question was raised concerning the disciplinary steps, and if it was the same steps in all of the  
     contracts, and if not, should it be.  Ms. Wall stated no, and explained the reason for the different 
     types of discipline within the various contracts. 
 
 



 3

     Mayor Fess thanked Law Director Wall, Human Resource Director Elaine Barton, and Finance  
     Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple, City Manager Huff, who spent many hours  
     working on the contracts, and to all of the employees for working together to get the contracts  
    ratified in a timely manner. 
 
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No.R-14-14. 
  

 Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-14-14 be 
     adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Fess, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None. Motion carried  
     unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-14-14 adopted. 
 

RES. NO. R-15-14 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the 

    Ohio Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association 
 
    Law Director Wall stated this contract provides a 2% wage increase, and the health and insurance  
    are the same. This contract includes several changes: reimbursement to the HAS account for 
    passing the physical fitness test, cash out time of sick time, and the use of holiday time as flexible 
    time. 
 
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No.R-15-14. 
  

 Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-15-14 be 
     adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Vogt, Wilson, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried  
     unanimously. Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-15-14 adopted. 
 
 
     PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
     No one came forward to speak at this time. 
      

City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff provided a brief overview of the City’s Emergency Preparedness Plan.  It is not 
just about plowing the streets, as large snows create many other issues. Emergency shelters and 
food to be set up as needed, emergency transportation as needed, enact emergency snow routes, 
trash collection, need to run additional turbines, find backup generators as needed, bring in private 
contractors to help with the removal of snow. 
With the storm that is going on at this time, the Public Works Department is putting down the Brine 
on the streets to prevent freezing, the Public Works Department employees are working two twelve 
hour shift at this time, the City has about 500 ton of salt available but have been using a lot of the 
Brine to help, looking to purchase more salt as it comes available, refuse collection will continue 
unless a Level 3 is issued by Miami County, and the we are currently in an Emergency Status with 
City Departments only and is not city wide. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked City Manager Huff for progressively looking ahead and providing the citizens 
with the information to let them know the City is ready to handle any situation and is on top of 
things. 
 

    Commissioner Wilson stated he is glad to see the City is prepared for any situation including being  
     able to communicate with other cities if help is needed.  City Manager Huff stated the City has a lot  
     of cooperation working closely with Miami County Communications Center.   
 
 



 4

Commissioner inquired as how citizens would be notified of any weather related emergency situations  
 or have a one call?  City Manager Huff stated the through TV, all media, and if someone has an 
 emergency should call 911. We are working with Miami County Communication Center on issuing a 
 one call, but all they have are land line numbers, and will need to have citizens sign up with their cell  
 phone numbers.  But we are working on this process at this time. 
 
 Commissioner Martin asked how citizens would find out if there was a Level 1-2 or 3 issued in the City 
 of Piqua?  City Manager Huff stated any of the media outlets are very informative. 
 
Commissioners Comments 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he has received a large number of comments regarding the potholes and 
why they are not getting patched. Commissioner Vogt reminded citizens to be careful when driving on 
the city streets, further stating they cannot be patched in the cold weather. City Manager Huff 
explained as soon as the weather breaks the Public Works Department plans to do a lot of night 
patching as there is not as much traffic.  We are also adding a lot more of funding to this year’s budget 
to help with the repairs and paving, explained City Manager Huff.   This problem is not just in Piqua 
other communities are having the same problem with the type of weather we had this winter, stated 
Commissioner Vogt and Mayor Fess. 
 
Commissioner Martin reminded citizens to be careful and dress warm if they have to be out in the 
weather.      
 
Commissioner Terry also reminded residents to be careful when going out. Stay warns, check on and 
help the elderly neighbors in your neighborhoods if they should need groceries, prescriptions, or their 
sidewalks/driveways cleared. Just be a good neighbor. 
 
Mayor Fess also reminded citizens to help their elderly neighbors with snow removal, and to be careful 
if you have to be out in the weather. 
 
 Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the  
 Regular Commission Meeting at 8:10 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and 
 Fess.  Nay, None. 

 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, March 18, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Martin and Vogt. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Approval of the Minutes from the February 20, 2014 Joint Work Session of the Piqua City 
Commission and the Piqua Planning Commission, as well as the Minutes from the March 4, 2014 
Regular City Commission Meeting. 
 
Commissioner Martin moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda; motion seconded by 
Commissioner Wilson; motion was carried unanimously and Mayor Fess declared the Consent 
Agenda approved. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 2-14 (2nd Reading) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 77.01 – TRAFFIC SCHEDULES ADOPTED, 
SCHEDULE IV OF THE PIQUA CODE, RELATING TO FOUR-WAY STOP INTERSECTIONS 
PERTAINING TO THE PARK AVENUE/LAMBERT DRIVE INTERSECTION 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer, spoke restating a study had been completed warranting a multi-way 
stop at this intersection based on the Ohio Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (OMUTCD) 
and the Transportation Committee had previously unanimously recommended that this 
intersection be made a four-way stop and that it should be presented to Commission.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 2-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 2-14 will stand as a 2nd Reading. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
RES. NO. R-45-14 
 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
URS CORP. FOR THE CONTINUATION OF PHASE 2 OF THE STORM WATER MASTER PLAN 
- SHAWNEE NEIGHBORHOOD STORMWATER STUDY 
 
Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator, spoke stating this Plan is a continuation of the Phase 
1 Master Plan completed in 2013.  This Plan would target the Shawnee neighborhood area where 
substantial flooding occurs in the corridor during heavy rain events.  An investigation will take 
place that will go from the river east to the railroad track near the mall area to evaluate what can 
be done to divert water away, as well as looking at the infrastructure in that area to see where 
there are issues with water getting to the pump station.   



 2

Commissioner Martin questioned if any other areas besides the mall have already been through 
such an issue, i.e., more south that also comes down through the same section in question.  Mr. 
Alexander stated there is a known field drainage pipe/tile coming from the east moving west that 
goes underneath the railroad track. That area will be investigated to see if there is a large amount 
of water coming from the east that could be putting water in the storm in the Shawnee area. 
 
Commissioner Vogt questioned who is responsible if there is something coming from the fields in 
that area.  Mr. Alexander stated that liability will be determined once the problem is investigated. 
 
Commissioner Wilson questioned if there had already been cleaning in the Shawnee area as a 
first step.  Mr. Alexander stated that there had been about 1,500 linear feet of cleaning in the 
Cleveland Street area last year.  The cleaning helped somewhat but there was flooding again this 
past summer during a large rain event.  A determination will need to be made as to whether the 
issue is capacity of the infrastructure or more to do with cleaning. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-45-14. 
      
Motion made by Commissioner Vogt; seconded by Commissioner Martin; motion was carried 
unanimously; Mayor Fees declared Res. No. R-45-14 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-46-14 
 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
URS CORP. FOR THE ENGINEERING DESIGN AND BIDDING SERVICES FOR THE WEST 
INTERCEPTOR TO ECHO LAKE PROJECT 
 
Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator, spoke stating this is another continuation of an 
alternative that came out of the Phase 1 study.  In that study a thorough investigation was done on 
the west end of Piqua.  It was determined through field survey, as well as public input and survey, 
that there was a concern with the amount of water that was going from the west end of town into 
Echo Lake.  As a result, an alternative was given for possibly piping in the west interceptor, which 
actually goes to Echo Lake.  It is approximately an 800 foot long ditch that’s highly eroded and has 
a large velocity of water that is coming from the west end of town.  The engineering design will be 
looked at for putting the pipe in, as well as going out for bidding services for contractors to do the 
work. 
 
Commissioner Martin questioned if this will take care of some of the silting problems in Echo Lake.  
Mr. Alexander stated it is believed that a large amount of the sediment and silt in the lake is 
coming from the west interceptor ditch that is going to that, so it is believed that the pipe will 
eliminate a lot of erosion that is taking place in the ditch resulting in less sediment going in to Echo 
Lake. 
 
Commissioner Martin questioned if something will be implemented to slow the water down or stop 
the water so that it doesn’t all blast into that corridor all at once.  Mr. Alexander stated that there 
will be a rip rap rock placed to assist in alleviating the velocity of the water coming out of the pipe. 
 
City Manager Huff stated that there will be some repairs to the retention ponds to make sure that 
the water is not running down those ditches as fast as it has been and a number of improvements 
are scheduled to take place. 
 
Commissioner Wilson questioned the time frame for the completion of this project.  Mr. Alexander 
stated it is in the 2014 budget and it is expected to be completed in 2014. 
 
Commissioner Martin questioned prior dealings with URS.  Mr. Alexander stated that URS was 
involved in the Phase 1 Master Plan.  It is believed that URS is the most adequate and best 



 3

engineering firm to do the design based on URS having hands on experience with this part of town 
and knowing the issue and their results have always been nothing but successful. 
 
Commissioner Wilson questioned if notification will be provided to the properties affected.  Mr. 
Alexander stated that there will be easements needed so contact will be made once the project 
has reached that point. 
 
City Manager Huff stated that public meetings have already been held with the property owners in 
an attempt to work on resolving this issue and they are very anxious to move forward. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Res. No. R-46-14. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Wilson; seconded by Commissioner Terry; motion was carried 
unanimously; Mayor Fess declared Res. No. R-46-14 adopted. 
 
 
MONTHLY REPORTS 
 
Mayor Fess stated that the Monthly Reports for January 2014 are in and have been accepted. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Steven Stiefel of Piqua, Ohio came forward to invite everyone to the 11th Annual Race Cars & 
Future Stars free event at the Miami Valley Centre Mall on March 28th through 30th, 2014.    
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Huff extended his congratulations to the Finance Department for receiving, again, 
the state award, with distinction, for the 2012 Financial Report and Audit.  Piqua is one of the 
limited number of municipalities that receive that. 
 
Further, interviews are scheduled for Thursday, March 20, 2014, for the two finalists for the 
Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director position.  A decision as to who will be 
filling that position will hopefully be made shortly thereafter. 
 
Finally, a large contingent from Piqua attended the River Summit in Dayton this past Friday.  A lot 
of good comments were made and a lot of good renderings and visions were presented and Piqua 
received a lot of compliments for the River Development efforts. 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Vogt wished good luck to Steven Stiefel on the Race Cars and Future Stars car 
show and thanked him for the good job he does.  He further stated he has received several calls 
questioning what is going on with Garbry Road.  City Manager Huff spoke stating temporary work 
is currently being done on Garbry and North Main.  The asphalt in those areas has completely 
deteriorated and crumbled and there is no way to patch because the patches won’t hold and the 
areas are too large.  The Public Works Department is using a process of milling the area out and 
using that milling to regrade the base and then adding a dry concrete powder and calcium to it.  
This procedure seems to be working as a temporary fix until the asphalt companies open.  
Commissioner Vogt is hopeful the temporary patches will last until the Enhanced Paving Program 
can start in the summer. 
 
Commissioner Martin had no comment. 



 4

 
Commissioner Terry stated that she attended the Piqua Rotary/OSU Buckeyes basketball game 
on Friday, March 14, 2014, giving special notice to Devon Alexander for his participation in the 
game, and noted that the fundraiser was well done and successful.  
 
Commissioner Wilson stated that he attended, along with Mayor Fess, the groundbreaking of a 
Habitat for Humanity home on Boone Street, which the family was very thankful and appreciative 
of receiving.  Habitat for Humanity is taking volunteers and he would suggest anybody interested 
in helping out with that give them a call. 
 
Mayor Fess stated that volunteering for Habitat for Humanity can also be done through 
Compassion Network.  In addition, she got the opportunity to attend the ribbon cutting for Piqua’s 
newest street at Piqua Baptist Church.  The hallway of the church has been decorated with quite a 
few Piqua buildings, including the old fire station on Park Avenue and the library.  Congratulations 
were extended to the congregation at Piqua Baptist Church for creating a new street here in Piqua 
with no potholes!! 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Vogt and seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn the 
Regular City Commission Meeting at 7:51 P.M.; motion was carried unanimously. 
       
            
       ____________________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
 
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
             KIMBERLY J. HEBB 
            ACTING CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 
Thursday, March 13, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met in a City Commission Work Session at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal 
Government Complex Commission Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Vice Mayor Vogt 
called the meeting to order.  Present were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Martin and Vogt.  Also 
present were Gary Huff, City Manager; Stacy Wall, Law Director; Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance 
Director/Assistant City Manager; Mike Rindler, Fire Department Chief; Brent Pohlschneider, 
Assistant Fire Department Chief; and Bruce Jamison, Chief of Police. 
 
Also present:  Gregory Foughty, Jim Gover, Jr., Russ Fashner, Tracy Gover, Jim Cruse, Pat 
Jenkins and Lou Moran, all Committee Members for the Piqua BikeFest. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Martin to excuse Mayor Fess from the Work Session; motion 
seconded by Commissioner Terry; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PIQUA BIKEFEST 
 
Numerous members from the BikeFest Committee spoke intermittently throughout the Work 
Session.  The Piqua BikeFest is currently slated to take place September 19-20, 2014, to begin 
late afternoon on September 19th through 11:00 P.M. and then commence on Saturday around 
11:00 A.M. through 11:00 P.M.     
 
Tracy Gover was pleased to report that the motorcycle group photo from the September 20, 1914 
original BikeFest would be recreated several times throughout the day on Saturday beginning at 
11:00 A.M.  There is hope that numerous vendors will be located downtown in various places in a 
barricaded six block area, along with local bands for entertainment.  A bike show will be located in 
front of the plaza with a pro stunt show being planned in front of Z’s and a beer garden possibly 
located around the entertainment stage in a controlled area. 
 
It was further noted that event insurance will be carried and the clean-up at the close of the event 
will be fully funded and taken care of at no expense or burden to the city. 
 
Any proceeds earned from the event, after the promoter receives his 20%, will be placed in a bank 
account with the hope that the event will return next year and those proceeds will then be invested 
into making the next year more successful and hopefully reach a point where a portion of the 
proceeds will be able to benefit a local charity. 
  
Commissioner Vogt voiced concern about local merchants being on board for the event based on 
a past failed car show.  The BikeFest Committee reported that a meeting with the downtown 
merchants has been scheduled for April 10, 2014 to address most, if not all, concerns and ideas. 
 
Chief Rindler voiced concern about access routes in case of emergencies and Chief Jamison 
voiced concerns about having enough police force(s) to ensure security for the event.  It was 
stated by a Committee Member that the hope is to have somewhere between 1,000 to 5,000 
visitors, however, they are planning for 10,000 and basing all safety/security issues on that 
number.  Tracy Gover stated the National Guard has volunteered their services in whatever 
capacity they may be able to assist. 
 
After a long discussion, all parties involved in the Work Session acknowledged the fact that there 
is still a lot of work to do with a lot of additional information and work needed in order to make this 
event a successful one.  Tracy Gover stated that the Committee continues to meet every 
Wednesday of every month, and they have been doing so since November of 2013, and invited 



 2

any or all in attendance to attend those meetings, which are held at Gover Harley-Davidson.  
Future meetings will be held with the City Commission as additional information is collected. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Martin to adjourn the Piqua City Commission Work Session at 
8:45 P.M.; seconded by Commissioner Terry; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
  
 
PASSED: ______________________________   
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
             KIMBERLY J. HEBB 
            ACTING CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 



 
 

                                                   ORDINANCE NO. 2-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 77.01 – TRAFFIC  
SCHEDULES ADOPTED, SCHEDULE IV OF THE PIQUA  
CODE, RELATING TO FOUR-WAY STOP INTERSECTIONS  
PERTAINING TO THE PARK AVENUE/ LAMBERT DRIVE  
INTERSECTION 
 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1:  Section 77.01 of the Piqua Code, Schedule IV – FOUR-WAY STOP 
INTERSECTION, is hereby amended to ADD the following: 

 
PARK AVENUE AND LAMBERT DRIVE 

 
 SEC. 2: Section 77.01 of the Piqua Code, Schedule IV Four-way Stop 
Intersection is hereby amended to revise the designation of the intersection; 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       

  ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
1st Reading – March 4, 2014 
2nd Reading – March 18, 2014 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
March 4, 2014 – 1st Reading  

March 18, 2014 – 2nd Reading 

April 1, 2014 –  3rd Reading 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 
 

An ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule 
IV of the Piqua Code, relating to four-way stop intersections pertaining to the 
Park Avenue/Lambert Drive intersection. 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

A request was brought before the Transportation Committee to study the 
possibility of converting the existing two-way stop intersection at Park Avenue 
and Lambert Drive into a multi-way stop.  Based upon the engineering study 
completed and with recommendation from the Transportation Committee, this 
intersection does meet the criteria for establishing a multi-way stop as per the 
requirements set forth in the Ohio Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(OMUTCD).   

The Transportation Committee voted unanimously at their October 24, 2013 
meeting to recommend to the City Commission that this intersection be changed 
from the current 2-way stop control to a multi-way stop control intersection. We 
wanted to wait until closer to spring to implement these changes so that if this 
ordinance is passed, we will have the appropriate weather to be able to install 
the necessary pavement markings and signage.  

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0  

Expenditure $:  $0 

Source of Funds:  

Narrative  The only financial impact will be for the new stop signs, the 
new stop ahead signs, and for the new pavement markings 
(stop bars and crosswalks).  The Sign Shop can make the 
signs in-house and can perform the pavement markings in-
house, also.   

 1. Approve the ordinance to amend Section 77.01, Schedule IV of the Piqua 



OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 

Code relating to four-way stop intersections pertaining to the Park 
Avenue/Lambert Drive intersection. 

2. Do not approve the ordinance and keep the intersection as a 2-way stop 
controlled intersection. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
This work will be completed in the spring of 2014. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the ordinance to allow for the conversion of the Park Avenue/Lambert 
Drive intersection to a multi-way stop.  

ATTACHMENTS  Traffic Control Change Request Evaluation for the Park Avenue/Lambert Drive 
intersection. 

 















RESOLUTION NO. R–47-14 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER  

TO JOHN DEERE COMPANY FOR THE PURCHASE OF LAWN 
MOWERS FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – 

STREETS AND PARKS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Public Works Department desires to purchase eight new John 
Deere Z930M EFI Commercial Ztrak Mowers for the Street and Parks Departments; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase of new lawn mowers in the 2014 
budget appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase will be made using The State of Ohio contract # STS 800276 with 
John Deere’s (Local Dealer - Koenig Equipment) quote being shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to John Deere Company for the 
purchase of eight new John Deere Z930M EFI Commercial Ztrak Mowers according to the 
specifications received; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies Street Department funds (Fund 101) in the 
amount of $36,618.76 and Parks Department funds (Fund 105) in the amount of $36,618.76 are 
available and is hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $73,237.52; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
April 1, 2014 

 
 

REPORT TITLE 
 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 
JOHN DEERE COMPANY FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
LAWN MOWERS FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENT – STREETS AND PARKS 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Doug Harter, Public Works Director 
Department:  Public Works 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

 
We are using State Bid contract # STS 800276 to purchase these mowers as this 
satisfies our formal bidding requirements. 
 
Our current mowers are 2011 John Deere Z925A & 2011 John Deere Z950 with 
anywhere between 500-700 hours on them.  The warranties were two years & 
500 hours on these machines. We will continue to use them until the new ones 
are received.  With the warranties now expired, we will experience higher 
maintenance costs. 
 
The fuel savings technology has advanced in the last three years to the point 
where we anticipate saving approximately 15-20% on our fuel purchases which 
equates to $600-$800 a year per mower.  The warranties will also be much 
better with three years and 1500 hours of coverage. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $50,000.00 net of trade in/expected resale 
Expenditure $:  $73,237.52 
Source of Funds: Streets 101-113-850-8805 (1/2)  $36,618.76 

Parks   105-015-880-8805 (1/2)  $36,618.76   
 
Narrative:  

 
We plan to try to sell all eight mowers that are three years 
old on Govdeals.com.  All of them have been well 
maintained and we expect the resale value to be above 
$26,000.00 and likely much higher.  Koenig Equipment will 
deliver the new mowers and train all of our employees on 
how to use them. 
 



 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution R-47-14 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution R-47-14 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution R-47-14 and offer staff an alternative. 

 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 
The new mowers would be ordered right away and delivery would be expected 
within 2-3 weeks.  We would then list our older mowers on Govdeals.com 
allowing enough time to receive the new ones before relinquishing the old ones. 
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

 
We support the passage of this Resolution so that we may decrease our fuel 
expenditures and eliminate our maintenance expense as the new mowers will be 
under warranty for the next three years. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

  

 
Exhibit “A” – John Deere Company (Koenig Equipment) Quote 

 















RESOLUTION NO. R-48-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PARCEL NO. N44-000560 
 
WHEREAS, Parcel No. N44-000560, 117 E. Water St., Piqua, Miami County, 

Ohio, is available for purchase and necessary for economic development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has been in pre-planning stages to create development of 
the Riverfront and 117 E. Water St. is a critical piece of the proposed planning of 
development; and  

 
WHEREAS, the owner of Parcel No. N44-000560 and the City executed a 

Purchase Agreement on December 27, 2013, and the owner has recently approached 
the City explaining the immediate need to sell the property.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase Parcel No. N44-
000560 for an amount not to exceed $48,000.00, taking into consideration the fair 
market value and, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement to Purchase 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
SECTION 2.  The Finance Director certifies and warrants that the funds are 
available. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
        ___________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 









RESOLUTION NO. R-49-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PARCEL NO. N44-017270 
 
WHEREAS, Parcel No. N44-017270, 111 S. Main St., Piqua, Miami County, 

Ohio, is available for purchase and necessary for economic development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has been in pre-planning stages to create development of 
the Riverfront and 111 S. Main St. is a critical piece of the proposed planning of 
development; and  

 
WHEREAS, the owner of Parcel No. N44-017270 and the City executed a 

Purchase Agreement on December 27, 2013, and the owner has recently approached 
the City explaining the immediate need to sell the property.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase Parcel No. N44-
017270 for an amount not to exceed $50,000.00, taking into consideration the fair 
market value and, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement to Purchase 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
SECTION 2.  The Finance Director certifies and warrants that the funds are 
available. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

 
 
         __________________________ 
         LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 












